
POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
Page 1 of 2 

 

 

POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
DATE:  September 13, 2023 
TIME:  9:00 a.m. 
PLACE: Polk County Courthouse, Dallas, Oregon 
 

THE LOCATION OF THIS MEETING IS ADA ACCESSIBLE. PLEASE ADVISE THE BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS AT (503-623-8173), AT LEAST 24 HOURS IN ADVANCE, OF ANY SPECIAL 

ACCOMMODATIONS NEEDED TO ATTEND OR TO PARTICIPATE IN THE MEETING VIRTUALLY. 

 
PAGE:         AGENDA ITEMS 
 
  1. CALL TO ORDER AND NOTE OF ATTENDANCE 

  
2. ANNOUNCEMENTS  

 
(a) Regular meetings of the Board of Commissioners are held on Tuesday and Wednesday each week. 

Each meeting is held in the Courthouse Conference Room, 850 Main Street, Dallas, Oregon. Each 
meeting begins at 9:00 a.m. and is conducted according to a prepared agenda that lists the principal 
subjects anticipated to be considered. Pursuant to ORS 192.640, the Board may consider and take 
action on subjects that are not listed on the agenda.  The Board also holds a department staff meeting 
at 9:00am on every Monday in the Commissioners Conference Room at 850 Main Street, Dallas, 
Oregon. 
 

(b) The Homeless Prevention Advisory Council will be meeting on September 13, 2023 from 12:00 pm to 
1:30 pm located in the first floor conference room at 182 SW Academy St, Dallas Oregon, 97338. 

 
(c) The Grand Ronde Sanitary District Board is meeting on September 20, 2023 at 9:15 a.m. The meeting 

will take place in the Polk County Courthouse, 850 Main Street, Dallas, OR, 97338. 
 
 

 

  3. COMMENTS (for items not on this agenda and limited to 3 minutes) 

  4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA  

  5. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES FROM August 30, 2023 & September 6, 2023 

  6. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR 

  7. LENGTH OF SERVICE AWARDS – Matt Hawkins 

• Doug Akin, 15 years of service 

• Brent DeMoe, 15 years of service 

• John Nyberg, 10 years of service 

 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
        

(a) Polk County Contract No. 23-182, Oregon Health Authority 
(Rosana Warren, Behavioral Health) 
 

   (b)   Right of Way Dedication Acceptance, Young 
    (Todd Whitaker, Public Works Director) 
 
   (c)   Right of Way Dedication Acceptance, Lowery 
    (Todd Whitaker, Public Works Director) 
 

(d)   Right of Way Dedication Acceptance, Morrison 
 (Todd Whitaker, Public Works Director) 
 

(e)   Right of Way Dedication Acceptance, Fulmer 
  (Todd Whitaker, Public Works Director)  

 
(f)   Polk County Contract No. 23-183, Oregon Family Support Network 

 (Rosana Warren, Behavioral Health) 

 

                              THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS WILL MEET IN EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 PURSUANT TO ORS 192.660. 
 
  ADJOURNMENT 



 

POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
MINUTES August 30, 2023  
 
1. CALL TO ORDER & ATTENDANCE 

At 9:03 a.m., Commissioner Gordon declared the meeting of the Polk County Board of Commissioners 
to be in session. Commissioner Pope was present and Commissioner Mordhorst was absent. 
 
Staff present: Greg Hansen, Administrative Officer 
  Morgan Smith, County Counsel 
  Matt Hawkins, Administrative Services Director 
          
2. ANNOUNCEMENTS 

Regular meetings of the Board of Commissioners are held on Tuesday and Wednesday each week. 
Each meeting is held in the Courthouse Conference Room, 850 Main Street, Dallas, Oregon. Each 
meeting begins at 9:00 a.m. and is conducted according to a prepared agenda that lists the principle 
subjects anticipated to be considered. Pursuant to ORS 192.640, The Board may consider and take 
action on subjects that are not listed on the agenda. The Board also holds a department staff meeting 
at 9:00 a.m. on every Monday in the Commissioners Conference Room at 850 Main Street, Dallas, 
Oregon.  
 
The Polk County Board of Commissioners will be attending a lunch and learn meeting with the Polk 
County District Attorney’s office on August 29, 2023, located at 820 SE Church St Ste 100, Dallas 
Oregon. 
 

 
3. COMMENTS 
 None. 
 

 
4.  APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

MOTION:  COMMISSIONER POPE MOVED, COMMISSIONER GORDON SECONDED, TO 
APPROVE THE AGENDA. 

 
    MOTION PASSED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE OF THE QUORUM.  
 
 
 
5.   APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF BOARD MEETING OF August 23, 2023 
 

MOTION:  COMMISSIONER POPE MOVED, COMMISSIONER GORDON SECONDED, TO 
APPROVE THE MINUTES OF August 23, 2023. 

      
    MOTION PASSED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE OF THE QUORUM. 
 
 
 
 
6. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

MOTION:  COMMISSIONER POPE MOVED, COMMISSIONER GORDON SECONDED, TO 
APPROVE THE CONSENT CALENDAR. 

      
    MOTION PASSED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE OF THE QUORUM. 
 

 
  
 
 



August 30, 2023 
Page 2 

 

  

 
 
 
 
 
The following items were approved by Motion under 5. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR: 
 

a) Polk County Contract No. 23-177, Oregon Health Authority 
(Rosana Warren, Behavioral Health) 

 
 
There no need for an executive session and Commissioner Gordon adjourned the meeting 
at 9:05 a.m. 
 
 

 

  
POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
       

        

 Jeremy Gordon, Chair   
 
 

                                                       
    Craig Pope, Commissioner 

        
                 
         
         Lyle Mordhorst, Commissioner 
 
 
 
 
Minutes: Nicole Pineda  
Approved: September 13, 2023 



 

POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
MINUTES September 6, 2023  
 
1. CALL TO ORDER & ATTENDANCE 

At 9:00 a.m., Commissioner Gordon declared the meeting of the Polk County Board of Commissioners 
to be in session. Commissioner Mordhorst and Commissioner Pope were present. 
 
Staff present: Greg Hansen, Administrative Officer 
  Morgan Smith, County Counsel 
  Matt Hawkins, Administrative Services Director 
          
2. ANNOUNCEMENTS 

Regular meetings of the Board of Commissioners are held on Tuesday and Wednesday each week. 
Each meeting is held in the Courthouse Conference Room, 850 Main Street, Dallas, Oregon. Each 
meeting begins at 9:00 a.m. and is conducted according to a prepared agenda that lists the principle 
subjects anticipated to be considered. Pursuant to ORS 192.640, The Board may consider and take 
action on subjects that are not listed on the agenda. The Board also holds a department staff meeting 
at 9:00 a.m. on every Monday in the Commissioners Conference Room at 850 Main Street, Dallas, 
Oregon.  
 
The Homeless Prevention Advisory Council will be meeting on September 13, 2023 from 12:00 pm 
to 1:30 pm located in the first floor conference room at 182 SW Academy St, Dallas Oregon, 97338. 
 
 

 
3. COMMENTS 
 None. 
 
 

 
4.  APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

MOTION:  COMMISSIONER POPE MOVED, COMMISSIONER MORDHORST SECONDED, 
TO APPROVE THE AGENDA. 

 
    MOTION PASSED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE OF THE BOARD.  
 
 
5. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

MOTION:  COMMISSIONER MORDHORST MOVED, COMMISSIONER POPE SECONDED, 
TO APPROVE THE CONSENT CALENDAR. 

      
    MOTION PASSED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE OF THE BOARD. 
 
 
6. PUBLIC HEARING – COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT – LEGISLATIVE AMENDMENT 23-02 

Eric Knudson, Associate Planner, went over a presentation in regards to the Board of 
Commissioners potentially adopting the proposed text amendments to PCZO Chapter 136, 
as included in the Memorandum and Attachment A that was provided to the Board of 
Commissioners on August 30, 2023. Mr. Knudson’s presentation went over the background 
information, the optional changes to PCZO Chapter 136, staff and the Planning 
Commission’s recommendation for optional changes, public comments received and 
applicable criteria. The Planning Commission recommends that the Board of 
Commissioners adopt the proposed text amendments to PCZO Chapter 136. 
 
Commissioner Gordon opened the hearing to comments from the public at 9:10 A.M. 
 

  



September 6, 2023 
Page 2 

 

  

Suzanne Reingans, Friends of Polk County, provided comment in support of LA 23-02 and 
read a prepared statement with both support and concerns.  
 
Chris Schmitt provided comment in support of LA 23-02 with his suggestions on the 
amendments. 
 
K. Jane Phillips provided comment in opposition to LA 23-02, while also sharing her 
concerns with the Land Use Hearing. Ms. Philips is requesting that the record remain open 
for 7 days before making a decision.  
 
Penny Cox, Polk Farm Bureau, provided comment in opposition to LA 23-02 and is also 
requesting that the record be left open for 7 days before making a decision.  
 
Commissioner Gordon ended public comment at 9:28 A.M. and asked the Board if they 
had any questions for staff. 
 
Commissioner Pope asked staff what the support and enforcements are when these 
changes from the state come to us. Austin McGuigan, Community Development Director, 
stated that there aren’t any because this is an unfunded mandate. Commissioner 
Mordhorst stated he likes the verbiage clarifying what a golf course is versus a disc golf 
course. Commissioner Gordon gave kudos to staff on preparing such a detailed report. 
Commissioner Gordon asked if any one in the public had any questions for Polk County 
staff. There was no comment. Commissioner Pope stated that he would like to keep the 
record open for 14 days and Commissioner Mordhorst seconded that. 
 
Commissioner Gordon stated that the record will remind open until 5:00 P.M. on September 
20, 2023, and that any comments submitted need to be taken to the Community 
Development Department on the second floor of the Courthouse.  
 
Commissioner Gordon closed the public hearing at 9:33 A.M.  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
The following items were approved by Motion under 5. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR: 
 

a) Polk County Contract No. 23-180, Lease Agreement 
(Dean Bender, Emergency Operations Manager) 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
There no need for an executive session and Commissioner Gordon adjourned the meeting 
at 9:33 a.m. 
 

 

  
 
 



September 6, 2023 
Page 3 

 

  

 
 
POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
       

        

 Jeremy Gordon, Chair   
 
 

                                                       
    Craig Pope, Commissioner 

        
                 
         
         Lyle Mordhorst, Commissioner 
 
 
 
 
Minutes: Nicole Pineda  
Approved: September 13, 2023 



CONTRACT REVIEW SHEET
OUNTY

Staff Contact: Rosana Warren Phone Number (Ext): 2428

Department: HealthServices:BehavioralHealth Consent Calendar Date: September gl-kOz}

Contractor Name: Oregon Health Authority

Address: 635 Capitol St NE Suite 350

City, State, Zip: Salem, OR 97301

Effective Dates - From: July 01,2023 Through: December 31,2023

Contract Amount: 51,729,017.29

B round:

Discussion

Amendment 11 extends agreement No. 22-03 for an additional 6 months with funding awarded
respectively to SUD services in the amount $133,136.57 and MH services in the amount of
s1,595,880.71, for a totat of 51,729,017.28.

Fiscal

Recommendation:

It is recommended that Polk County sign amendment 1 1 to IGA 173147 with the Oregon Health
Authority.

Copies of signed contract should be sent to the following:

Name: Rosana Warren E-mail: hs.contracts@co.polk.or.us

Name: E-mail:

Oregon Health Authority provides funds to finance Community Mental Health, Addiction Treatment,
Recovery & Prevention and Problem Gambling services. This contract is an amendment to the initial
award from the state IGA 173147. The award may be modified from time-to-time throughout the
calendar year to reflect changes to funds and/or programs that are made a part of the grant.

The total amount of this agreement is 51,712,708.93 for the first 6 months of fiscal year 2024. The
2023-24 Behavioral Health budget was prepared in anticipation of this funding. The agreement will
be modified throughout the year and a budget resolution may be needed at a iater date.



173147-11/aeb Page 1 of 10 

Approved 11.15.21 (GT2856-21) 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, this document is available in alternate 

formats such as Braille, large print, audio recordings, Web-based communications and other 

electronic formats. To request an alternate format, please send an e-mail to dhs-

oha.publicationrequest@state.or.us or call 503-378-3486 (voice) or 503-378-3523 (TTY) to 

arrange for the alternative format. 

ELEVENTH AMENDMENT TO 

OREGON HEALTH AUTHORITY 

2022 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR THE FINANCING OF 

COMMUNITY MENTAL HEALTH, ADDICTION TREATMENT, RECOVERY, & 

PREVENTION, AND PROBLEM GAMBLING SERVICES AGREEMENT #173147 

This Eleventh Amendment to Oregon Health Authority 2022 Intergovernmental Agreement for the 

Financing of Community Mental Health, Addiction Treatment, Recovery, & Prevention, and Problem Gambling 

Services effective as of January 1, 2022 (as amended, the “Agreement”), is entered into, as of the date of the last 

signature hereto, by and between the State of Oregon acting by and through its Oregon Health Authority 

(“OHA”) and Polk County (“County”). 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, OHA and County wish to extend the Financial Assistance Award through June 30, 2023 and 

amend the Agreement as follows. Twelfth  

AGREEMENT 

1. This Amendment, when fully executed by every party, regardless of the date of execution by

every party, shall become effective on the date this Amendment has been approved by the

Department of Justice or June 30, 2023, whichever date is later per the authority under OAR

125-247-0288, and shall be governed by the terms and conditions herein, and such expenses

incurred by Recipient may be reimbursed once this Agreement is effective in accordance with

the schedule of payments in Exhibit C, “Financial Assistance Award”.

Unless extended or terminated earlier in accordance with its terms, this Agreement shall expire

on December 31, 2023. Agreement termination shall not extinguish or prejudice OHA’s right to

enforce this Agreement with respect to any default by Recipient that has not been cured.

All references to the expiration date of June 30, 2023 in this Agreement shall be amended

to December 31, 2023.

DocuSign Envelope ID: A7434D73-5314-4070-87F3-BEE2AD7188E4
Polk County Contract No. 23-182
(Amendment 11 to Contract No. 22-03)



173147-11/aeb  Page 2 of 10 

 Approved 11.15.21 (GT2856-21) 

 

2. The financial and service information in the Financial Assistance Award are hereby amended as 

described in Attachment 1 attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference.  Attachment 

1 must be read in conjunction with the portion of Exhibit C of the Agreement that describes the 

effect of an amendment of the financial and service information. 

3. Capitalized words and phrases used but not defined herein shall have the meanings ascribed 

thereto in the Agreement. 

4. County represents and warrants to OHA that the representations and warranties of County set 

forth in section 4 of Exhibit F of the Agreement are true and correct on the date hereof with the 

same effect as if made on the date hereof. 

5. Except as amended hereby, all terms and conditions of the Agreement remain in full force and 

effect. 

6. This Amendment may be executed in any number of counterparts, all of which when taken 

together shall constitute one agreement binding on all parties, notwithstanding that all parties are 

not signatories to the same counterpart.  Each copy of this Amendment so executed shall 

constitute an original. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The remainder of this page is intentionally blank 

  

DocuSign Envelope ID: A7434D73-5314-4070-87F3-BEE2AD7188E4



173147-11/aeb  Page 3 of 10 

 Approved 11.15.21 (GT2856-21) 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this amendment as of the dates set forth below their 

respective signatures. 

7. Signatures. 

Polk County  

By: 

    `     

Authorized Signature Printed Name Title Date 

State of Oregon acting by and through its Oregon Health Authority 

By:  

         

Authorized Signature Printed Name Title Date 

Approved by: Director, OHA Health Systems Division 

By: 

            

Authorized Signature Printed Name Title Date 

 

Approved for Legal Sufficiency: 

Approved by Joseph Callahan, Assistant Attorney General, on June 06, 2023; e-mail in agreement file. 

  

DocuSign Envelope ID: A7434D73-5314-4070-87F3-BEE2AD7188E4



173147-11/aeb  Page 4 of 10 

 Approved 11.15.21 (GT2856-21) 

 

Attachment 1 

 

EXHIBIT C 

Financial Pages 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A7434D73-5314-4070-87F3-BEE2AD7188E4



173147-11/aeb  Page 5 of 10 

 Approved 11.15.21 (GT2856-21) 

Financial Pages  

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A7434D73-5314-4070-87F3-BEE2AD7188E4



173147-11/aeb  Page 6 of 10 

 Approved 11.15.21 (GT2856-21) 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A7434D73-5314-4070-87F3-BEE2AD7188E4



173147-11/aeb  Page 7 of 10 

 Approved 11.15.21 (GT2856-21) 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A7434D73-5314-4070-87F3-BEE2AD7188E4



173147-11/aeb  Page 8 of 10 

 Approved 11.15.21 (GT2856-21) 

 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A7434D73-5314-4070-87F3-BEE2AD7188E4



173147-11/aeb  Page 9 of 10 

 Approved 11.15.21 (GT2856-21) 

 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A7434D73-5314-4070-87F3-BEE2AD7188E4



173147-11/aeb  Page 10 of 10 

 Approved 11.15.21 (GT2856-21) 

 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A7434D73-5314-4070-87F3-BEE2AD7188E4



RIGHT OF WAY DEDICATION

KNOW ALL BY THESE PRESENTS, that Bob Young and Pam Young, do hereby

grant and dedicate, as grantor, to Polk County, a political subdivision of the State of
br.gon, Grantee, for use as public roads forever the real property described and shown in

Exhibit "A" attached and made part of this document.

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the above described and granted premises unto said Polk

County, a political subdivision of the State of Oregon, its successors and assigns forever.

The true consideration of this conveyance is for Seventeen Hundred Fifty and no/100

Dollars ($1,750.00) and other value given, the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged by

GRANTOR

IN WITNESS WHEREOF , he has hereunto set his hand and seal this \ 4 day of
u 2023.

oung

Pam Young

STATE OF OREGON

\,0oUour-ia,
COUNTY OF+EIJC

ss
)
)
)

On this AO.V t SrU$OSt ,2123,personally appeared before me

Bob young and Pam Young whose identity is perso'na*ly known to me (or proved to me

on the basis of satisfactory evidence) to be the personsvhose name is subscribed to this

instrument and acknowledged that he executed the same'

Page I I

@ AI-IGETA I(RlsNilE ENSilINGER
NOTAFTY PUBUC. OREGON
coMMtsstoN No. 165630

APRIL
N PUBLIC FOR O



POLK COUNTY ACCEPTANCE:

Board of Commissioners

Approved as to form:

Date

County Counsel Date

Pagel2



Exhibit *A"

Parcel OO5-Ol

A tract of land lying in the Southwest Quarter of Section 17, Township 08 South,
Range 06 West, of the Willamette Meridian, Polk County, Oregon and being a
portion of the tract of land conveyed to Bob and Pam Young, recorded in Polk
County as Document number 1993-000536; Said dedication being a strip of land
along the southern right of way of Black Rock Road and being furthered described
as follows:

Beginning at a calculated point at the intersection of the southern right of way
boundary of Black Rock Road, as legalized by the Polk County board of
Commissioners Order 19-06 and depicted by CSL642L, and the western property
line of the property owned by Bob and Pam Young, Document number
1993-000536; Said point being 24.47 feet right of Engineer's centerline Station
4L+76.7I and being S 58036'32" E, a distance of 365.51 feet, from the South
Quarter Corner of Section 17 and being the True Point of Beginning;

Thence, along said western property line, S 02o19'12" W, a distance of 15.96 feet,
to a calculated point 40,00 feet right of Engineer's centerline Station 4L+8O.25;

Thence, leaving said western property line, S 78"47't2" E, a distance of L08.74
feet, to a calculated point 40.00 feet right of Engineer's centerline Station
42+83.00 and lying on the eastern property boundary of the property owned by
Bob and Pam Young;

Thence, N 20o53'25" E a distance of 14.39 feet, along said eastern property
boundary of the property owned by Bob and Pam Young, to a calculated point 26.05
feet right of Engineer's centerline Station 42+86.36 and lying on said southern right
of way boundary of Black Rock Road;

Thence, along said southern right of way boundary of Black Rock Road,
N 75057'57" W, a distance of 14.88 feet, to a calculated point 24.27 feet right
Engineer's centerline Station 42+72.L2;

Thence, continuing along the southern right of way boundary of Black Rock Road,
N 78o17'27" W, a distance of 98.77 feet, to a calculated point 24.47 feet right of
Engineer's centerline Station 4t+76.7L and lying at the True Point of Beginning,

Parcel 005-01 contains an area of 1,695 square feet or 0.04 acres (Int.) more or
less.

Page 1 of 1



oR_POLK_2o 1 6( t ), M ltchelt Street
and Bta* Rock Road Reconstructlon

surueyed by:
FEDERAL H IGHWAY ADM I N ISTMTIO N
610 East sth Street
Vancouver, WA 98667
Date: November, 2018

Date: August,202t

Dnwlng by:
USDOT/FHWNWFLHD

S€le ln feet:50 25 0 50 r00r/w

I
I

I

T. 08 S., R. 06 W., WILLAMETTE

tn

N

2

\n'1

N75057'57"W

PARCEL OO5-01

14.88'

WEYERHAEUSER COMPANY
220 OCCIDENTAL AVE S
SEATTLE, WA, 98104

98,77',
N78017'27'W

108,74'
s78047'12'E

Suruey Petormed wlth:

EASIS OF EEARINGS &
COORDINATES:

Oregon North SrcS NAD3 (2011)

Orthometrlc elevatlons based on the
NAVD8g GEOIDIZb

U n lE : I ntematlona I Feet
WEYERHAEUSER COMPANY
220 OCCIDENTAL AVE S
SEATTLE. WA, 98104

\

POLK COUNTY, OREGON
RIGHT-OF.WAY
Descrlptlon of Land:
Parcel 005 - Young Bob & Pam
PO Box 127
Falls Clty, OR.973/H

7,08s, R,06W, wlllamette Merldlan
Sectton 17: SEleSWlt

Rlght-of-Way ln Acres

Total ROW thls Exhlblt: 0,t0

Exlstlng ROW this Exhlblt: 0,06

Acqulred ROW thls Exhlblt: 0.04

Const. Easement thls Exhlblt: 0

ShCCt 1 Of 
' 

EXHIBIT A

SEATTLE, WA, 98104

r

20

YOUNG BOB & PAM
PO BOX 127
FALLS CITY, OR. 97344

A= 34o3s'01" (Lt)
R= 675.00'
T= 210,13'
L= 407,43'

WEYERHAEUSER COMPANY
22O OCCIDENTAL AVE S

LEGEND:

Q 
r**t*^tshtof way



TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT

KNOW ALL BY THESE PRESENTS, that Michael J. Allen and Sheryle M. Lowery,
hereinafter called the GRANTOR, do hereby grant unto Polk County a political subdivision of
the state of Oregon, hereinafter called the County, its successors in interest and assigns, a

temporary construction easement, including the right to construct road improvements including
drainage facilities, stream channel improvements and for construction staging on the real
property described and shown in Exhibit ooA", attached and made part of this document.

GRANTOR does hereby bargain, sell, convey, transfer, and deliver unto County a temporary
construction easement and right-of-way upon, across, and under so much of the aforesaid land as

described in Exhibit "A".

It being understood that said temporary easement is only for the excavation, placement and
construction of said road and street improvements, associated facilities and stream channel
improvements for the period of three (3) years from the date of grantor signature hereon.

Uses undertaken by the GRANTOR shall not be inconsistent or interfere with the use of the
subject easement areaby the County. No building or utility shall be placed upon, under, or
within the property subject to the foregoing easement during the term thereof, however, without
the written permission of the County.

Upon completion of the construction, the County shall restore the surface of the property to its
original condition and shall indemnifu and hold the GRANTOR harmless against any and all
loss, cost, or damage arising out of the exercise of the rights granted herein.

The true consideration of this conveyance is Seven Hundred Seventy and No/l00 Dollars
($770.00) and other value given, the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged by GRANTOR.

In construing this deed and where the context so requires, the singular includes the plural and all
grammatical changes shall be implied to make the provisions hereof apply equally to
corporations and to individuals.

llPage



WHEREOF, We have hereunto set our hand and seal this Wday ofIN
2023

Michael J. Allen

Sheryle M.

STATE OF OREGON

COUNTY OF POLK

on this lb* ou, or Aucdst ,2}z3,personally appeared before me

Michael J. Allen and Sheryle M. Lowery, whose identity is personally known to me (or proved to

me on the basis of satisfactory evidence) to be the person whose names are subscribed to this

instrument and acknowledged that he executed the same.

ss
)
)
)

F / r^'-
NOTARY PUBLIC FOR OREGON

POLK COUNTY ACCEPTANCE:

Board of Commissioners

Approved as to form:

Date

@
OFFICIALSTA},IP

Ar{I NICOIE BREHM

NOTARV PUBLIC. OREGON

cofil6$0N N0. 1021956

rY Cor$lssloN EXPIRES JUNE 2t, 2026

County Counsel Date

211)age



Exhibit *A"

Temporary Construction Easement OO9

A tract of land lying in the Southeast Quarter of Section 17, Township 08 South,
Range 06 West, of the Willamette Meridian, Polk County, Oregon and being a

portion of the tract of land conveyed to Sheryle M. Lowery and Michael J. Allen,
recorded in Polk County as Document number 2019-006663, Said dedication being
a strip of land along the northern right of way of Mitchell Street and being furthered
described as follows:

Beginning at a calculated point, lying at a point on the eastern property line of the
property owned by Sheryle M. Lowery and Michael J. Allen, Document number
2019-006663, and the northern right of way boundary of Mitchell Street; Said point
being 32.32 feet left of Engineer's centerline Station 60+30.98 and being N

82o40'OO" E, a distance of I,522.93 feet, from the South Quarter Corner of Section
17, Township 08 South, Range 06 West, Willamette Meridian and being the True
Point of Beginning;

Thence, along the northern right of way of Mitchell Street, N 83041'20" W, a

distance of 64.68 feet, to a calculated point 35.35 feet left of Engineer's centerline
station 59+66.37;

Thence, leaving the northern right of way of Mitchell Street, N 03037'10" E, a
distance of 19.65 feet, to a calculated point 55.00 feet left of Engineer's centerline
Station 59+66.37;

Thence, S 86022'50" E, a distance of 65.67 feet, to a calculated point 55.00 feet
left of Engineer's centerline Station 60+32.04;

Thence, along said property line, S 06017'35"W, a distance of 22.7L feet, to a
calculated point 32.32 feet left of Engineer's centerline Station 60+30.98 and lying
at the True Point of Beginning.

Temporary Construction Easement 009 contains an area of L,379 square feet or
0.03 acres (Int,) more or less.

Page 1 of 1



OR-PO LK-20 1 6( I ), M ltchel t Street
and Black Rock Road Re@nstrudlon

surueyed by:
FE DE ML H IG'l WAY AD MIN ISTPATION
610 East 

'th 
Street

van@uver, WA 98661
Date: November, 2078

Drawlng by:
USDOT/FHWUWFLHD
Date: August, 2021

Scale ln feet

-:-:l50 25 0 50 100

Survey Performed wlth:

BASIS OF EEARINGS &
COORDINATES:

Oregon North SrcS NADS (2011)

Orthometrlc elevations based on the
NAVD88 GEOIDI2b

UnlB: Intematlonal Feet

o(o
at

slq
sltat

6t-

$lfr

AND
STREET

I

NI

H/fr

MICHAEL ].
1020

-- FALLS CrrY, OR 97344

$ 1s.6s' J 
-

NO3o37'10tE-

65. 67'

LAMPRECHT BOYD B
970 MITCHELL ST
FALLS CITY, OR. 97344
(VACATED 50'R/W, PER
POLK CO. DOC. SP1-51)

MORRISON, JENNEANE L
AND MORRISON, JENS M
1888 MICHIGAN CIW IANE
NORTHWEST
SALEM, OR 97304

64.68',
N83041'20',W

r/w * 
-_

POLK COUNTY, OREGON
RIGHT-OF.WAY
Descrlptlon of Land:
Parcel 009 - Lowery, Sherlye M.

and Allen, Mlchael J.

T.085. R.06W., Wlllamette Meridlan
sectton 17: swselt
Right-of-Way In Acres

Total ROW thls Exhlblt: 0.30

Exlstlng ROW this Exhlblt: 0.30

Acqulred ROW thls Exhlblt: N/A

Const, Easement thls Exhlblt: 0.03

sheetlofi EXHIBITA

I

I

I

i

I

I

I

-f
I

I

I

;
I

t-.'I

I

I

I

I
t

f$lqt

N

L-"r.r)L...-"u
oR 97303

s82040'00"w, 1, 522.93'
to the South Quarter
Secfion Comer of
Secuon 17,
T. 08 5., R 06 W.
wllamette Merldlan

FULMER ALLEN L
8335 CHEYENNE DR N
SEMINOLE, FL. 33777

i-i

BABBITT, RICHARD L,
PO BOX 7051

I

I
CITY OF
FALLS clw I
299 MILL ST t
retts aw, I
OR.97344 ;:

I

I

I



RIGHT OF WAY DEDICATION

KNOW ALL BY THESE PRESENTS, that Jinneane L. and Jens M. Morrison, do
hereby grant and dedicate, as grantor, to Polk County, a political subdivision of the State
of Oregon, Grantee, for use as public roads forever the real properly described and shown
in Exhibit "A" attached and made part of this document.

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the above described and granted premises unto said Polk
County, a political subdivision of the State of Oregon, its successors and assigns forever,

The true consideration of this conveyance is for Twenty-Two Thousand Nine Hundred
and No/100 Dollars ($221900.00) and other value given, the receipt of which is hereby
acknowledged by GRANTOR

WHEREOF, he has hereunto set his hand and seal this I 
q 

day of
2023.

Jens M. Morrison

J L. Morrison

STATE OF OREGON

COUNTY OF'POLK

Aua,,J.zo,3, personally appeared before me

)
)
)

ss

On this I tI dav of*T_
Jens M. Morrison and Jinneane L. Morrison , whose identities are personally known
to me (or proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence) to be the persons whose
names are subscribed to this instrument and acknowledged that they executed the same.

9FFNNL$AI,l'rgllff DlvlDnmuu
NOYARYPUruC'OFE@N
COMMtggtON NO.1m7.*le

i/fY OOIRESMAY a0/127

NOTARY PUBLIC FOR OREGON

Page I I



POLK COUNTY ACCEPTANCE:

Board of Commissioners

Approved as to form:

Date

County Counsel Date

Page | 2



Exhibit "A"

Parcel O11-O1

A tract of land lying in the Southeast Quarter of Section 17, Township 08 South,
Range 06 West, of the Willamette Meridian, Polk County, Oregon and being a
portion of the tract of land conveyed to Jinneane L. Morrison and Jens M. Morrison,
recorded in Polk County as Document number 2019-015263, Said dedication being
a strip of land along the northern right of way of Mitchell Street and being furthered
described as follows:

Beginning at a calculated point, lying at the intersection of the west property line of
the property owned by Jinneane L, Morrison and Jens M. Morrison, Document
number 2019-015253, and the northern right of way boundary of Mitchell Street;
Said point being 32.32 feet left of Engineer's centerline Station 60+30.98 and being
N 82040'00" E, d distance of t,522.93 feet, from the South Quarter Corner of
Section 17, Township 08 South, Range 06 West, Willamette Merldian and being the
True Point of Beginning;

Thence, leaving said western property line and the northern right of way boundary
of Mitchell Street, N 75006'10" E, ? distance of L02.18 feet, to a calculated point
65.00 feet left of Engineer's centerline Station 6l+26.37;

Thence, S 82025'46" E, ? distance of 79.73 feet, to a calculated point 65.00 feet
feft of Engineer's centerline Station 62+O0.t7;

Thence, S 71000'01" E, ? distance of 153.81 feet, to a calculated point 55.00 feet
left of Engineer's centerline Station 63+43.20;

Thence, S 60035'00" E, o distance of 238.44 feet, to a calculated point 50.00 feet
left of Engineer's centerline Station 65+69.50; Said point lying on the eastern
property line of said property owned by Jinneane L. Morrison and Jens M. Morrison;

Thence, along the eastern property line, S 34006'06" E, a distance of 58.54 feet, to
a calculated point 28,40 feet left of Engineer's centerllne Station 66+23.91 and
lying on the northern right of way boundary of Mitchell Street;

Thence, along the northern right of way boundary of Mitchell Street, N 56021'05"
W, a distance of 297.70 feet, to a calculated point 51,89 feet left of Engineer's
centerline Station 63+36,97;

Thence, continuing along the northern right of way boundary of Mitchell Street, N
83o4L'20" W, a distance of 317.83 feet, to a calculated point 32.32 feet leftof
Engineer's centerline Station 60+30.98 and lying at the True Point of Beginning.

Parcel 011-01 contains an area of 11,174 square feet or 0.26 acres (Int.) more or
less.

Page 1 of 1



OR-rcLL20 t 6( t ), Mltdteil StrGet
.nd al',c* R@k Roed Re(rlnstnt(don

Sutwycd by:
FEOEML II IGH WAY ADNI NISTRANON
6t0 East 

'th 
Street

Vanco.rver, WA 9866t
Datc: Novcmbar,20tg

Date: Aryust,202t

Drawlng byt
USDOT/FHWA/WFLHD

Ssla ln f.ct

-:---=50 25 0 50 r00

Suyey Motmed wtth,

SASIS OF BEARTNGS &
COOR,DINATES:

Otegon Nofth SPCS MD3 Q0r1)
Otthomctrlc clcvrtlons b',scd on the
I{AVOgg GEOID|Zb

UnlB: Inl'lmatlon.l Faat

N

T. 08 S., R. 06 W., WILTAMETTE

R-
30.37'35'(Rt)
805.00

I

F,I

79.73'
ss2.25'16.E

o(o

EI

slry
$,n

l

,"4

SALEM, OR 97304

PARCEL OIl.O'

to''w297.70',
tts6.2t

t02.t8'
Nr5.06',t0"E

@
,I'ORA'SOA/, JENNEANE L
AND MORRISON, JENS H

'888 
MICI'IGAN CIW IN

NORTTIWEST

1$.et,
s7t.00'0t'E

238..U'
s50rt5'00'E

220.42',
430.30'

NGHT.OF.WAY
Descrlptlon ol Lrnd:
rarcci O'' ' MORnISON. ,ENNEANE L
AND I,'ORRISON, )EN' U

'888 
NICHIGAN CIIY IANE NW

s LEtlt,oRgnu
T,085, R.O5W., MlrmCttc l,lerldtan
sfiton t7: swhsEy.

t:"1i

\

I

I

I

I
i

I

I

I

r

) oR 97303

LEGEND:

Ptoposcd Rlght ol My

j_ulg,
osl
6.

a

,

I

,g
l,i
sg
,

I

I
14CALLISTER, MICHAEL
P.O. BOX 25
FAlrS Ctfv, oR, 97.t44

BABBITI', RI(:IIARD L, ]R
PO BOX 7051

I sAtE,ir.

-^ ' '\--\\.-\
suolo'oo'w. 1,s22,93' \r,.
to tto S@ttr Outrtor
S.ctlon Cffiar of
Sc(,don t7,
r.o8s,,E05l./.
wllzmctta il.ddtan

Rlght-of-Way ln ,r;res

rotFl Row thts Exhtbtt:t.o4

Eflsflng ROW thls E ilblt: 0,48

Aqulrcd Row thts Exhtbtt: 0,26

Co'tst, Easemcnt thls Exhlut: N/A

Sheetlofl EXHIBITA



RIGHT OF WAY DEDICATION and
TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT

KNOW ALL BY THESE PRESENTS that Allen L. Fulmer, does hereby grant and

dedicate, as grantors, to Polk County, a political subdivision of the State of Oregon,

Grantee, for use as public roads forever the real property described and shown in Exhibit
"A" attached and made part of this document.

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the above described and granted premises unto said Polk
County, a political subdivision of the State of Oregon, its successors and assigns forever.

GRANTOR does also hereby bargain, sell, convey, transfer, and deliver unto County a

temporary construction easement and right-of-way upon, across, and under so much of
the aforesaid land as described and shown in Exhibit "A".

It being understood that said temporary easement is only for construction activities

required for reconstruction of the roadway granted by this easement for the period of
three (3) years from the date of GRANTOR signature hereon.

Uses undertaken by the GRANTOR shall not be inconsistent or interfere with the use of
the subject easement area by the County. No building or utility shall be placed upon,

under, or within the property subject to the temporary construction easement during the

term thereof, however, without the written permission of the County.

Upon completion of the construction, the County shall restore the surface of the property

toits original condition and shall indemnify and hold the GRANTOR harmless against

any and all lors, cost, or damage arising out of the exercise of the rights granted herein.

The true consideration of this conveyance is for Eleven Thousand One Hundred and

No/100 Dollars ($11,100.00) and other value given, the receipt of which is hereby

acknowledged by GRANTOR

,r* day ofIN WITNESS WHEREOF , I have hereunto set my hand and seal this
2023

{
AJ€ftL. Fulmer
ftll"Yw

Page | 1



STATE OF'FLORIDA )
)
)

ss

COUNTY OF h .lL ilc.g

On this lf Ou, "f h\w+l ,2123,personally appeared before me

t$i|". Fulmer, whose identity is personally known to me (or proved to me on the basis

of satisfactory evidence) to be the for the and

acknowledged that he executed the same . fL DU FlSb -O rZ- ?o- l:F- O

OTARY PUBLIC FOR RIDA

My Commission ExPires:

POLK COUNTY ACCEPTANCE:

Board of Commissioners Date

Approved as to form:

County Counsel Date

ANNE E. UNGER

Public . State of FloridaNotarY
329382GG*Commission

2072Comm AugErpiresrjly
AssnNotaryNationalBonded through

Pagel2



Exhibit *A"

Parcel OO8-O1

A tract of land lying in the Southeast Quarter of Section 17, Township 08 South,
Range 06 West, of the Willamette Meridian, Polk County, Oregon and being a

portion of the tract of land conveyed to Allen L, Fulmer, recorded in Polk County as
Deed Volume 215-637, Said dedication being a strip of land along the southern
right of way of Mitchell Street and being furthered described as follows:

Beginning at a calculated point on the southern right of way boundary of Mitchell
Street, L2.35 feet right of Engineer's centerline Station 57+03.47 and being
N 81o47'04" E, a distance of 1,193.04 feet, from the South Quarter Corner of
Section 17, Township 08 South, Range 06 West, Willamette Meridian; Said point
lying at the intersection of the southern right of way boundary of Mitchell Street
and the western property line of the property owned by Allen L. Fulmer and being
the True Point of Beginning;

Thence, along said western property line, S 06018'40" W, a distance of 25.68 feet,
to a calculated point 38.00 feet right of Engineer's centerline Station 57+02.26;

Thence, leaving said western property line, S 86022'50" E, a distance of 224.LL
feet, to a calculated point 38.00 feet right of Engineer's centerline Station
59+26.37;

Thence, S 66014'39" E, a distance of 63.91 feet, to a calculated point 60.00 feet
right of Engineer's centerline Station 59+86.37;

Thence, N 53"48'50" E, a distance of 20.64 feet, to a calculated point 46.79feet
right of Engineer's centerline Station 60+02.23 and lying on the western right of
way boundary of 9th Street;

Thence, along said western right of way of 9th Street, N 06018'53" E, a distance of
20.37 feet, to a calculated point 26.44 feet right of Engineer's centerline Station
60+03.18; Said point lying on said southern right of way boundary of Mitchell
Street;

Thence, along the southern right of way boundary of Mitchell Street,
N 83041'20" W, a distance of 300.05 feet, to a calculated point 12,35 feet right of
Engineer's centerline Station 57+03.47 and lying at the True Point of Beginning;

Parcel 008-01 contains an area of 6,494 square feet or 0.15 acres (Int.) more or
less.

Page 1 of 2



Exhibit rrA"

Temporary Construction Easement OO8-O1b

A tract of land lying in the Southeast Quarter of Section 17, Township 08 South,
Range 06 West, of the Willamette Meridian, Polk County, Oregon and being a

portion of the tract of land conveyed to Allen L, Fulmer, recorded in Polk County as

Deed Volume 215-637, Said dedication being a strip of land along the southern
right of way of Mitchell Street and being fufthered described as follows:

Beginning at a calculated point on the southern right of way boundary of Mitchell
Street, 12.35 feet right of Engineer's centerline Station 57+03.47 and being N

8!047'04" E, a distance of L,L93.04 feet, from the South Quarter Corner of Section
17, Township 08 South, Range 06 West, Willamette Meridian; Said point lying at
the intersection of the southern right of way boundary of Mitchell Street and the
western property line of the property owned by Allen L, Fulmer;

Thence, along said western property line, S 06018'40" W, a distance of 25.68 feet,
to a calculated point 38.00 feet right of Engineer's centerline Station 57+02.26;

Thence, leaving said western property line, S 86022'50" E, a distance of 224.LL
feet, to a calculated point 38.00 feet right of Engineer's centerline Station
59+26.37 and being the True Point of Beginning;

Thence, S 48043'59" E, a distance of 44.20 feet, to a calculated point 65,00 feet
right of Engineer's centerline Station 59+6I.37;

Thence, S 86022'50" E, a distance of 40.00 feet, to a calculated point 65,00 feet
right of Engineer's centerline Station 60+01 .37 and lying on the western right of
way boundary of 9th Street;

Thence, along said western right of way of 9th Street, N 06018'53" E, a distance of
L8.23 feet, to a calculated point 46.79 feet right of Engineer's centerline Station
60+02.23;

Thence, leaving said western right of way of 9th Street, S 53048'50" W, a distance
of 20.64 feet, to a calculated point 60.00 feet right of Engineer's centerline Station
59+86.37;

Thence, N 66014'39" W, a distance of 63,91 feet, to a calculated point 38.00 feet
right of Engineer's centerline Station 59+26.37 and being said True Point of
Beginning;

Temporary Construction Easement 008-0lb contains an area of 664 square feet or
0.02 acres (Int,) more or less.

Page 2 of 2



OR-PO LK-20 1 6( I ), M,tchail Street
dnd Bldck Rock RoEd Re@nstru&lon

Surueyed by:
FE DE ML H IG'IWAY AD II' I N ISTMNO N
610 East sth Street
Van@uver, WA 98661
Date: November,2018

Drawlng by:
USDOT/FHWA/WFLHD
Date: August, 2027

s6le ln feet:50 25 0 50 100

N T. 08 S,, R. 06 W., WILLAMETTE MERIDIAN

U; o
@ 6t

l$l{
3lR6tt/w 

-

*$r -* -

cIry oR.97344

LAMPRECHT BOYD B
970 MITCHELL ST

25,68'
s06.1a4ew.'.

1/d ---f

Survey Perfomed wlth:

BASIS OF BEARINGS &
COORDINATES:

Oregon Nofth SPCS NAD3 (2011)

Orthometric elevatlons based on the
NAVD&g GEOIDI2b

UnlE: Intematlonal Feet

POLK COUNTY, OREGON
RIGHT.OF.WAY
Desciption of Land:
Parcel 008 - Fulmer, Allen L.
8335 Cheyenne Dr. N,
Semlnole, FL 33777

7.08s. R,06W., willamette Meridian
sectlon 17: Sw%sEY4

I

Rlght-of-Way in Acres

Total Row thls Exhlblt: 0.28

Exlsttng ROW thls Exhlblt: O.13

Acqulred ROw thls Exhlblt: 0.15

Const, Easement thls Exhlblt: 0.02

Sheet 7 of I EXHIBIT A

I

I

I

I
;

I

I

I

s/$

63.91'
s66.14'39"E :flr

o

\

P/L

lfls

N53648'50"8

LEGEND:

Construdlon Easement

40,o0'
s86022'50',E

FALLS CITY, OR, 97344

oo
U)
€
o i;

I

I

I

PARCEL OO8.O1

.r-l

sS to 47'(N'W, 1, 193.O4'
to the South Quarter
Sectlon Comer of
Sedlon 17,
T, 08 5,, R 06 W.
Wllamette Merldlan

BABBITT, RICHARD L, JR
PO BOX 7051
SALEM, OR 97303

A= 4010'39" (Lt)
R= 650.00'
T= 23.7L'
t= 47.39'

221.11'
s86"22'50"E
300.05'
N83041'20',W

A= 7010'11"
R= 3s0,00'
T= 21,93'
L= 43,80'

Q e.oot"aa4ntotw"r

8335 CHEYENNE DR N
SEMINOLE, FL. 33777

@
FULMER ALLEN L

CITY OF FALLS CITY
299 MILL ST

44.20'
s48.43',59"E



 CONTRACT REVIEW SHEET 

 Staff Contact:  Rosana Warren  Phone Number (Ext):  2428 

 Department:  Health Services: Behavioral Health  Consent Calendar Date:  September 13, 2023 

 Contractor Name:  Oregon Family Support Network 

 Address:  4275 Commercial Street SE Suite 180 

 City, State, Zip:  Salem, OR 97302 

 Effective Dates - From:  July 01, 2023  Through:  June 30, 2024 

 Contract Amount:  Varies 

 Background: 

 Oregon Family Support Network has agreed to provide Peer Support services to referred Polk 
 County Behavioral Health individuals. 

 Discussion: 

 Oregon Family Support Network as a service provider has been cleared to work through a review of 
 State Peer Support licensing. Peer Support is a criteria of the Wraparound model to meet fidelity for 
 Polk County. Providing these services is part of best practice. 

 Fiscal Impact: 

 The Mental Health Services budget has sufficient expenditure authority to accommodate this 
 contract. 

 Recommendation: 

 It is recommended that Polk County sign this agreement with Oregon Family Support Network. 

 Copies of signed contract should be sent to the following: 
 Name:  Rosana Warren  E-mail:  hs.contracts@co.polk.or.us 

 Name:  E-mail: 

 Name:  E-mail: 



 CONTRACT & AGREEMENT SUMMARY 

 CONTRACT NUMBER: 

 COUNTY/DEPARTMENT:  POLK COUNTY 
 BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 
 182 SW ACADEMY STREET 
 DALLAS, OR 97338 
 ID#: 93-6002310 

 CONTACT PERSON:  ROSANA WARREN 

 DATE ISSUED:  06/29/23 

 CONTRACTOR  OREGON FAMILY SUPPORT NETWORK 
 4275 COMMERCIAL STREET SE SUITE 108 
 SALEM, OR 97302 
 ID#: 93-1114601 

 CONTACT PERSON:  SANDY BUMPUS 

 SERVICES PROVIDED:  To provide peer to peer services as outlined in Exhibit B. 

 EFFECTIVE DATES:  FROM JULY 01, 2023 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2024 

 BUDGET LINE #:  240-8540-540-M81

 DOLLAR AMOUNT:  VARIES 

 TERMS:  Rates per Exhibit B 

 ADDITIONAL 
 COMMENTS/INFORMATION: 

 NOTIFY FISCAL DEPARTMENT IMMEDIATELY OF ANY CONTRACT TERMINATION 
 hs.contracts@co.polk.or.us 

Polk County Contract No. 23-183

mailto:hs.contracts@co.polk.or.us


 AGREEMENT 

 This Agreement is made and entered into by and between 

 POLK COUNTY 
 BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

 182 SW ACADEMY STREET 
 DALLAS, OR 97338 
 ID#: 93-6002310 

 a poli�cal subdivision of the State of Oregon, hereina�er referred to as "County" and 

 OREGON FAMILY SUPPORT NETWORK 
 4275 COMMERCIAL STREET SE, SUITE 108 

 SALEM, OR 97302 
 ID#: 93-1114601 

 hereina�er referred to as "Contractor"; and, 

 WHEREAS,  County  is  authorized  to  obtain,  by  contract,  the  services  necessary  to  conduct  its 
 opera�on; and 

 WHEREAS,  Contractor  has  available,  or  can  obtain,  the  necessary  licenses  or  cer�ficates 
 required for the performance of said services; 

 NOW,  THEREFORE,  IT  IS  HEREBY  AGREED  by  and  between  the  par�es  above-men�oned,  for  and 
 in considera�on of the mutual promises hereina�er stated as follows: 

 SECTION I: DECLARATION OF SERVICES RENDERED AS AN INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 

 A.  The  County  is  desirous  of  securing  the  services  of  the  Contractor  to  perform  services 
 more  specifically  outlined  in  Exhibit  B:  Statement  of  Work,  based  on  Contractor’s 
 specialty and capacity, and Polk County’s needs and capacity. 

 B.  The  Contractor  shall  provide  authorized  services  to  Polk  County  referrals  at  Contractor’s 
 facili�es,  Polk  County  Buildings  on  space  available  basis,  and/or  consumer’s  school 
 facility,  work  loca�on,  or  home  depending  upon  the  needs  of  the  individual.  Depending 
 on  the  nature  of  services  provided,  the  loca�on  of  services  may  be  curtailed  by  Exhibit  B: 
 Statement of Work. 

 C.  Services  shall  be  provided  in  accordance  with  the  document  en�tled  Exhibit  B: 
 Statement  of  Work,  which  is  a�ached  and  by  reference  herein,  made  an  integral  part  of 
 this Agreement. 

 1 



 SECTION II:  CONSIDERATION 

 A.  As  considera�on  for  the  services  provided  by  the  Contractor  during  the  period  beginning 
 July  1,  2023,  and  ending  June  30,  2024,  payment  shall  be  retroac�ve  for  approved 
 services  provided  to  Polk  County  referrals  on  or  a�er  the  period  beginning  date.  Any 
 renewals  and/or  changes  to  this  agreement  must  be  submi�ed  in  wri�ng,  in  the  form  of 
 an amendment to this Contract and signed by both Par�es. 

 B.  Agreement  is  effec�ve  upon  the  signature  of  all  par�es.  It  is  understood  by  both  par�es 
 that  no  commitments  have  been  or  are  made  by  either  party  beyond  the  termina�on  of 
 the Agreement. 

 C.  The  County  will  pay  to  the  Contractor,  by  check(s)  or  ACH  direct  payment  upon  receipt  of 
 an  authorized  billing  document  at  the  rates  outlined  in  Exhibit  B  and  as  approved  by  Polk 
 County.  Billings  shall  be  submi�ed  to  HS  Fiscal  either  electronically  to 
 hs.fiscal@co.polk.or.us  or  by  mail  to  Polk  County  Health  Services  Business  Services 
 Department,  182  SW  Academy  Street  Suite  204,  Dallas,  Oregon  97338.  The  County  shall 
 endeavor  remit  payment  within  2-3  weeks  of  receipt  of  appropriate  billing,  suppor�ng 
 documenta�on and signed invoice. 

 D.  It  is  agreed  that  Contractor  shall  accept  payment  from  Polk  County  as  full  and  total 
 payment  for  services  and  that  Contractor  shall  not  bill  any  Polk  County  clients  (or  their 
 insurance) served under this agreement for services delivered hereunder. 

 E.  Contractor  is  engaged  hereby  as  an  independent  contrac tor,  and  the  services  to  be 
 rendered  are  those  of  an  independent  contractor,  subject  to  ORS  Chapter  656,  and  will 
 be so deemed for purposes of the following: 

 i.  Contractor  will  be  solely  responsible  for  payment  of  any  Federal  or  State  taxes 
 required as a result of this Agreement. 

 ii.  This  Agreement  is  not  intended  to  en�tle  Contractor  to  any  benefits  generally 
 granted  to  County  employees.  Without  limita�on,  but  by  way  of  illustra�on,  the 
 benefits  which  are  not  intended  to  be  extended  by  this  Agreement  to  the  Contractor 
 are  vaca�on,  holiday  and  sick  leave,  other  leaves  with  pay,  tenure,  medical  and 
 dental  coverage,  life  and  disability  insurance,  over�me,  Social  Security,  workers' 
 compensa�on, unemployment compensa�on or re�rement benefits . 

 iii.  The  Contractor  is  an  independent  contractor  for  purposes  of  the  Oregon  Workers' 
 Compensa�on  Law  (ORS  Chapter  656)  and  is  solely  liable  for  any  Workers' 
 Compensa�on  coverage  under  this  Agreement.  If  the  Contractor  has  the  assistance 

 2 

mailto:hs.fiscal@co.polk.or.us


 of  other  persons  in  the  performance  of  this  Agreement,  the  Contractor  shall  qualify 
 and  remain  qualified  for  the  term  of  this  Agreement  as  a  direct  responsibility 
 employer under ORS 656.407 or as a contrib u�ng employer under ORS 656.411. 

 F.  Exhibit  A  –  Business  Associate  Agreement  a�ached  hereto  is  by  this  reference 
 incorporated herein and made an integral part of this agreement. 

 SECTION III:  GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 A.  Extent  of  Agreement:  This  Agreement  contains  all  the  terms  and  condi�ons  agreed  upon 
 by  the  par�es.  No  other  understandings,  oral  or  otherwise,  regarding  the  subject  ma�er 
 of this Agreement shall be deemed to exist or to bind any of the par�es hereto. 

 B.  Cap�ons:  The  cap�ons  or  headings  in  this  Agreement  are  for  convenience  only  and  in  no 
 way define, limit or describe the scope or intent of any provision of this Agreement. 

 C.  Payment  as  Sole  Monetary  Obliga�on  of  the  County:  The  Contractor  is  engaged  as  an 
 independent  contractor.  Payment  as  provided  herein  shall  be  the  sole  monetary 
 obliga �on  of  the  County.  Unless  otherwise  specified,  the  responsi bility  for  payment  of 
 all  opera�ng  costs,  Federal,  State,  County  or  city  taxes/assessments  and  any  other 
 charges  imposed  by  law  upon  employers  shall  be  the  sole  responsibility  of  the 
 Contractor. 

 D.  Licensing  and  Program  Standards:  The  Contractor  agrees  to  comply  with  all  applicable 
 State,  County,  and  municipal  standards  for  licensing,  and  any  other  standards  or  criteria 
 described in this Agreement and its a�achments. 

 E.  Contractor-client  Rela�onship:  The  Contractor  will  establish  a  system  through  which  a 
 client  and/or  the  client’s  parents  or  guardian  may  represent  grievances  about  the 
 opera�on  of  the  Contractor’s  service  program.  At  the  �me  arrangements  are  made  for 
 the  Contractor’s  service,  the  Contractor  will  advise  the  child  and  parents  or  guardian  of 
 the provision.  The Contractor shall no�fy the County of all unresolved grievances. 

 F.  Safeguarding of Client Informa�on: 

 i.  The  use  or  disclosure  by  any  party  of  any  informa�on  concern ing  a  recipient  of 
 services  purchased  under  this  Agreement,  for  any  purpose  not  directly  connected 
 with  the  administra �on  of  the  County's  or  the  Contractor's  responsibili�es  with 
 respect  to  such  purchased  services,  is  prohibited,  except  on  wri�en  consent  of  the 
 County,  or  if  the  County  is  not  the  recipient,  on  wri�en  consent  of  the  recipient  or 
 a�orney, or otherwise compliant with Contractor’s obliga�ons under Exhibit A. 

 3 



 ii.  For  the  purposes  of  safeguarding  protected  client  informa�on,  Contractor  agrees  to 
 abide  by  all  County  rules  and  regula�ons  regarding  Communica�on  technology  as 
 documented  in  the  County’s  Communica�ons  Technology  Policy.  Contractors 
 providing  services  from  a  County  facility  will  be  provided  appropriate  County 
 equipment  to  perform  its  du�es  under  this  agreement.  To  the  extent  that  Contractor 
 elects  to  use  their  own  technology  (computer,  cellular  phone,  etc…)  Contractor 
 warrants  that  such  equipment  shall  be  compliant  with  County  rules  and  regula�ons, 
 and its obliga�ons under Exhibit A. 

 G.  Civil  Rights  Act  of  1964  and  Rehabilita�on  Act  of  1973:  The  Contractor  agrees  to  comply 
 with  the  requirements  of  the  Civil  Rights  Act  of  1964,  and  Sec�on  504  of  the 
 Rehabilita �on  Act  of  1973,  and  their  implemen�ng  Federal  regula�ons,  including 
 Execu�ve Order 11246 as amended. 

 H.  Fiscal Responsibility, Records, Controls, Reports, and Monitoring Procedures: 

 i.  The  Contractor  agrees  to  establish  and  exercise  such  controls  as  are  necessary  to 
 assure  full  compliance  with  Federal  regula�ons  and  the  County’s  guidelines  on 
 allowable use of funds paid by the County under this Agreement. 

 ii.  The  Contractor  agrees  to  maintain  fiscal  records  consistent  with  generally  accepted 
 accoun�ng  prac�ces  and  controls,  which  will  properly  reflect  all  direct  and  indirect 
 costs  and  funds  expended  in  the  performance  of  this  Agreement.  The  Contractor 
 shall  make  these  records  available  at  reasonable  �mes  upon  request  to  State  and 
 Federal personnel, and other persons authorized by the County. 

 iii.  The  Contractor  agrees  to  collect  financial  sta�s�cs  on  a  regular  basis  and  to  make 
 financial reports at �mes in the form prescribed by the County. 

 I.  Program  Records,  Controls,  Reports,  and  Monitoring  Procedures:  The  Contractor  agrees 
 to  maintain  program  records  including  sta�s�cal  records,  and  to  provide  program 
 records  to  the  County  at  �mes  and  in  the  form  prescribed  by  the  County.  The  Contractor 
 agrees  to  establish  and  exercise  such  controls  as  are  necessary  to  assure  full  compliance 
 with  the  program  and  facili�es  review  (including  mee�ngs  with  consumers,  reviews  of 
 service  records,  review  of  policy  and  procedures,  review  of  staffing  ra�os  and  job 
 descrip�ons,  and  mee�ngs  with  any  staff  directly  of  indirectly  involved  in  the  provision 
 of  services)  may  be  conducted  at  any  reasonable  �me  by  State  and  Federal  personnel 
 and other persons authorized by the County. 

 J.  Reten�on  of  Records:  The  Contractor  agrees  to  retain  all  books,  records,  and  other 
 documents  relevant  to  this  Agreement  for  three  (3)  years  a�er  final  payment  is  made 

 4 



 under  the  Agreement  or  all  pending  ma�ers  are  closed,  whichever  is  later.  If  li�ga�on  or 
 other  ac�on  involving  the  Agreement  is  started  before  the  end  of  the  three  (3)  year 
 period,  the  records  shall  be  retained  un�l  all  issues  arising  out  of  the  ac�on  are  resolved 
 or un�l the end of the three (3) year period, whichever is later. 

 K.  Insurance: 

 i.  Contractor  agrees  that  it  is  an  independent  contractor  and  not  an  agent  of  the 
 County.  The  Contractor  and  the  County  shall  not  be  responsible  for  any  legal  liability, 
 loss,  malprac�ce,  damages,  costs  and  expenses  arising  in  favor  of  any  person  on 
 account  of  personal  injuries,  death  or  property  loss  or  damage  occurring,  growing 
 out  of,  incident  to  or  resul�ng  directly  or  indirectly  from  the  acts  or  omissions  of  the 
 other party under this Agreement. 

 ii.  Contractor  shall  obtain,  and  at  all  �mes  keep  in  effect,  comprehensive  liability 
 insurance  and  property  damage  insurance  covering  ac�vi�es,  opera�ons,  and 
 omissions  of  the  Contractor,  all  subcontractors,  and  all  named  addi�onal  insureds. 
 Contractor  may  sa�sfy  this  requirement  for  general  liability  insurance  in  any  manner 
 allowed  by  ORS  30.282.  Such  liability  insurance,  whatever  the  form,  shall  be  in  an 
 amount  not  less  than  one  million  dollars  ($1,000,000)  with  provision  for  increased 
 coverage  as  such  limits  are  increased  by  legisla�ve  ac�on.  In  the  event  of  unilateral 
 cancella�on  or  restric�on  by  the  insurance  company  of  the  Contractor's  insurance 
 policy  referred  to  in  this  paragraph,  the  Contractor  shall  immediately  no�fy  the 
 County verbally and in wri�ng. 

 iii.  As  evidence  of  the  insurance  coverage  required  by  this  Agreement,  and  prior  to  the 
 execu�on  of  this  Agreement,  the  Contractor  shall  furnish  a  Cer�ficate  of  Insurance  to 
 Polk  County,  to  Polk  County  Health  Services,  182  SW  Academy  Street,  Suite  204, 
 Dallas,  Oregon  97338.  The  Cer�ficate  form,  to  be  completed  by  the  Contractor's 
 insurer,  naming  Polk  County  as  addi�onal  insured,  will  be  maintained  in  the  County's 
 file of this Agreement. 

 iv.  There  shall  not  be  any  cancella�on,  material  changes  or  failure  to  renew  such 
 insurance policy (policies) without thirty (30) days’ prior no�ce to the County. 

 L.  Subcontrac�ng:  Unless  subcontrac�ng  is  authorized  elsewhere  in  the  Agree ment,  the 
 Contractor  shall  not  enter  into  any  subcontracts  for  any  of  the  work  contemplated  under 
 this  Agreement  without  obtaining  prior  wri�en  approval  from  the  County,  which 
 approval  shall  be  a�ached  to  the  original  Agreement.  Approval  by  the  County  of  a 
 subcontract  shall  not  result  in  any  obliga�ons  of  the  County  in  addi�on  to  the  agreed 
 rates  of  payment  and  total  considera�on.  Any  subcontracts  which  the  County  may 

 5 



 authorize  shall  contain  all  requirements  of  this  Agreement,  and  the  Contractor  shall  be 
 responsible  for  the  performance  of  the  subcontractor.  Contractor  may  subcon tract 
 medical  inves�gator's  du�es  so  long  as  the  sub contractor  possesses  medical 
 qualifica�ons equivalent to those of the Contractor. 

 M.  Re-nego�a�on  or  Modifica�on:  Any  altera�ons,  varia�ons,  modifica�ons  to  or  waivers 
 of  provisions  of  this  Agreement  shall  be  valid  only  when  they  have  been  reduced  to 
 wri�ng,  duly  signed,  and  approved  by  the  Contractor  and  the  County  and  a�ached  to 
 the original of this Agreement. 

 N.  Excuses  for  Nonperformance:  Neither  party  to  this  Agreement  shall  be  held  responsible 
 for  delay  or  failure  in  performance  of  the  ac�vi�es  required  herein  when  such  delay  or 
 failure  is  due  to  causes  beyond  the  control  and  without  the  fault  or  negligence  of  the 
 party.  Such  causes  may  include,  but  are  not  restricted  to,  fire,  flood,  epidemic,  strikes, 
 acts  of  God  or  the  public  enemy,  unusually  severe  weather,  legal  acts  of  public 
 authori�es,  or  delays  or  defaults  caused  by  public  carriers,  which  cannot  reasonably  be 
 forecast  or  provided  against.  Either  party  may  terminate  the  Agreement  a�er 
 reasonably  determining  that  such  delay  or  failure  will  prevent  con�nued  performance  of 
 the  Agreement,  and  a�er  giving  wri�en  no�ce  to  the  other  party  of  the  cause,  its  effect 
 on  Agreement  performance  and  effec �ve  date  of  termina�on.  If  the  Agreement  is  so 
 terminated,  the  obliga�on  of  the  County  shall  be  limited  to  payment  for  services 
 provided in accordance with the Agreement prior to the date of termina�on. 

 O.  Remedies:  If  the  Contractor  fails  to  provide  the  services  or  perform  any  of  the  other 
 requirements  under  the  Contract,  and  such  failure  is  not  excused  under  the  paragraph 
 �tled  "Excuses  for  Nonperformance",  the  County,  a�er  giving  the  Contractor  wri�en 
 no�ce  of  such  failure,  may  withhold  part  or  all  of  the  Contractor's  payment  for  the 
 services  un�l  such  failure  is  corrected.  If  the  Contractor  does  not  correct  such  failure 
 within  a  reasonable  �me  allowed  by  the  County,  the  County  may  terminate  the 
 Agreement  in  accordance  with  the  clause  �tled  "Termina�on."  However,  this  paragraph, 
 and  any  ac�ons  taken  or  not  taken  under  it,  shall  not  affect  the  County's  rights  under  the 
 "Termina�on" clause. 

 P.  Termina�on:  This  Agreement  may  be  terminated  by  mutual  consent  of  both  par�es  or 
 unilaterally  by  both  par�es  at  any  �me  upon  thirty  (30)  days’  no�ce  to  the  other  party 
 in  wri�ng  and  delivered  personally  or  by  Cer�fied  Mail.  The  County  may  also  unilaterally 
 terminate  this  Agreement  effec�ve  upon  delivery  of  wri�en  no�ce  to  the  Contrac tor,  or 
 at  such  later  date  as  may  be  established  by  the  County,  under  any  of  the  following 
 condi�ons: 

 6 



 i.  If  funds,  specifically  authorized  by  Legisla�ve  acts,  do  not  become  available  in 
 amounts  sufficient  to  allow  for  purchase  of  the  stated  quan�ty  of  services.  When 
 possible  and  when  agreed  upon  by  the  par�es,  the  Agreement  may  be  modified  in 
 accordance  with  the  paragraph  en�tled  “Re-nego�a�on  or  Modifica�on”  to 
 accommodate a reduc�on in funds. 

 ii.  If  Federal  or  State  laws,  regula�ons  or  guidelines  are  modified  or  changed  in  such  a 
 way  that  the  services  are  no  longer  allowable  or  appropriate  for  purchase  under  this 
 Agreement  or  no  longer  qualify  for  the  funding  proposed  for  payments  authorized  by 
 this Agreement. 

 iii.  If  any  license  or  cer�ficate  required  by  law  or  regula�on  to  be  held  by  the  Contractor 
 to  provide  the  services  required  by  this  Agreement  is  for  any  reason  denied,  revoked, 
 not  renewed,  or  changed  in  such  a  way  that  the  Contractor  no  longer  meets 
 requirements for such license or cer�ficate. 

 iv.  Termina�on  under  this  clause  shall  be  without  prejudice  to  any  obliga�ons  or 
 liabili�es  of  either  party  already  reasonably  incurred  prior  to  such  termina�on, 
 except  that  the  Contractor  shall  be  solely  responsible  for  its  obliga�ons  or  liabili�es 
 a�er  the  termina�on  date,  which  obliga�ons  or  liabili�es  result  from  the 
 Contractor's  failure  to  provide  for  termina�on  of,  or  exercises  the  right  to  terminate, 
 its  commitments.  No  right  of  ac�on  or  damages  shall  accrue  to  the  benefit  of  the 
 Contractor if the Agreement is terminated under this clause. 

 v.  The  County,  by  wri�en  no�ce  of  default  (including  breach  of  contract)  to  the 
 Contractor, may terminate this Agreement: 

 a.  If  the  Contractor  fails  to  provide  the  services  called  for  by  this  Agreement  within 
 the �me speci fied herein or any extension thereof granted by the County; or 

 b.  If  the  Contractor  fails  to  perform  any  of  the  other  requirements  of  this 
 Agreement; or 

 c.  If  the  Contractor  so  fails  to  perform  the  work  required  in  the  Agreement  that 
 performance  of  this  Agreement  in  accordance  with  its  terms  is  endan gered,  and 
 a�er  receipt  of  wri�en  no�ce  from  the  County  specifying  such  failure,  the 
 Contractor  fails  to  correct  such  failure  within  ten  (10)  days  or  such  longer  period 
 as the County may authorize. 

 vi.  If  the  Agreement  is  terminated  under  this  clause,  the  County's  obliga�ons  shall  be 
 limited  to  payment  for  services  provided  in  accordance  with  the  Agreement  prior  to 

 7 



 the  date  of  termina�on,  less  any  damages  suffered  by  the  County.  The  rights  and 
 remedies  of  the  County  in  this  clause  related  to  defaults  (including  breach  of 
 contract)  by  the  Contractor  shall  not  be  exclusive  and  are  in  addi�on  to  any  other 
 rights and remedies provided to the County by law or under this Agreement. 

 Q.  Hold  Harmless:  Except  for  claims  arising  in  whole  from  the  negligence  of  County,  its 
 employees  or  its  agents,  Contractor  agrees  to  indemnify  and  hold  County  harmless  from 
 and  against  all  ac�ons,  suits,  claims  and  demands  arising  out  of  Contractor’s 
 performance  under  this  Contract  and  agrees  to  defend  County  in  such  ac�ons,  suits, 
 claims and demands. 

 R.  Waiver  of  Default:  Waiver  of  any  default  shall  not  be  deemed  to  be  a  waiver  of  any 
 subsequent  default.  Waiver  of  breach  of  any  provision  of  the  Agreement  shall  not  be 
 deemed  to  be  a  waiver  of  any  other  or  subsequent  breach  and  shall  not  be  construed  to 
 be  a  modifica�on  of  the  terms  of  the  Agreement  unless  stated  to  be  such  in  wri�ng, 
 signed  by  an  authorized  representa�ve  of  the  County,  and  a�ached  to  the  original 
 Agreement in accordance with the paragraph en�tled "Re-nego�a�on or Modifica�on". 

 S.  Severability:  The  par�es  agree  that  if  any  term  or  provision  of  this  Agreement  is  declared 
 by  a  court  of  competent  jurisdic�on  to  be  illegal  or  in  conflict  with  any  law,  the  validity  of 
 the  remaining  terms  and  provisions  shall  not  be  affected,  and  the  rights  and  obliga�ons 
 of  the  par�es  shall  be  construed  and  enforced  as  if  the  Agreement  did  not  contain  the 
 par�cular term or provision held to be invalid. 

 T.  Fees  Prohibited:  The  Contractor  will  not  impose  or  demand  any  fees  from  any  person  or 
 agency  for  services  provided  and  paid  for  under  this  Agreement,  unless  the  fees  have 
 been approved in advance by the County in wri�ng. 

 U.  Non-Discrimina�on:  The  Contractor  acknowledges  that  they  are  an  equal  opportunity 
 employer  and  no  person  shall  be  denied  services  or  discrimi nated  against  on  the  basis  of 
 race,  color,  religion,  sex,  sexual  orienta�on,  na�onal  origin,  marital  status  or  age,  and 
 there  shall  be  no  discrimina�on  in  the  selec�on,  compensa�on  or  the  employ ment 
 prac�ces with respect to personnel coming under the auspices of the Contractor. 

 V.  Assignment  of  Agreement:  The  Contractor  shall  not  assign  or  transfer  its  interest  in  this 
 Agreement  without  prior  wri�en  approval  of  the  County,  which  shall  be  a�ached  to  the 
 original  Agreement.  Any  such  assignment,  if  approved,  is  subject  to  such  condi�ons  and 
 provisions,  as  the  County  may  deem  necessary.  No  approval  by  the  County  of  any 
 assignment  or  transfer  of  interest  shall  be  deemed  to  create  any  obliga�on  of  the  county 
 in addi�on to the agreed rates of payment and total Agreement considera�on. 

 8 



 W.  Funds  Authorized  and  Available:  The  County  cer�fies  that  at  the  �me  of  signing  this 
 Agree ment,  sufficient  funds  are  authorized  and  available,  or  are  an�cipated  to  be 
 available,  for  expenditure  to  finance  costs  of  this  Agreement  within  the  County's  current 
 appropri a�on or limita�on. 

 X.  Recovery  of  Overpayments:  If  billings  under  this  Agreement,  or  under  any  Agreement 
 between  the  Contractor  and  the  County,  result  in  payments  to  the  Contractor  for  which 
 the  Contractor  is  not  en�tled  under  the  terms  of  such  Agreement,  the  County,  a�er 
 giving  wri�en  no�fica�on  to  the  Contractor,  may  withhold  from  payments  due  to  the 
 Contractor  under  this  Agreement  such  amounts,  over  such  periods  of  �me,  as  are 
 necessary to recover the amount of the overpayment. 

 Y.  Criminal  History  Records  Checks:  Contractor  agrees  to  authorize  a  review  of  state  and 
 federal  records  by  Polk  County  as  a  qualified  en�ty,  to  determine  the  nature  of  any 
 criminal  ac�vity  the  Contractor  may  have  been  involved  in  accordance  with  OAR 
 943-007-001  for  purposes  described  in  OAR  407-007-0400.  No  work  will  be  assigned  to 
 Contractor  un�l  a  Criminal  History  Check  is  completed  and  verified  by  the  qualified 
 en�ty.  Contractor  shall  no�fy  Polk  County  within  five  days  of  being  arrested,  charged,  or 
 convicted of any crime. 

 SECTION IV:  CLAUSES REQUIRED BY OREGON LAW FOR PERSONAL SERVICES CONTRACTS 

 A.  Payment  of  Subcontractors,  Industrial  Accident  Fund  Contribu�ons,  Liens  and 
 Withholding Taxes: 

 1.  Contractor  shall  make  payment  promptly,  as  due,  to  all  persons  supplying  to  such 
 contractor  labor  or  material  for  the  prosecu�on  of  the  work  provided  for  in  this 
 contract. 

 2.  Contractor  shall  pay  all  contribu�ons  or  amounts  due  the  Industrial  Accident  Fund 
 from such contractor or subcontractor incurred in the performance of the contract. 

 3.  Contractor  shall  not  permit  any  lien  or  claim  to  be  filed  or  prosecuted  against  the 
 state,  county,  school  district,  municipality,  Municipal  Corpora�on  or  subdivisions 
 thereof, on account of any labor or material furnished. 

 4.  Contractor  shall  pay  to  the  Department  of  Revenue  all  sums  withheld  from 
 employees pursuant to ORS 316.167. 

 B.  Payment  of  Claims  by  County  :  If  Contractor  fails,  neglects  or  refuses  to  make  prompt 
 payment  of  any  claim  for  labor  or  services  furnished  to  the  contractor  or  a  subcontractor 
 by  any  person  in  connec�on  with  the  public  contract  as  such  claim  becomes  due,  the 

 9 



 proper  officer  or  officers  represen�ng  Polk  County  may  pay  such  claim  to  the  person 
 furnishing  the  labor  or  services  and  charge  the  amount  of  payment  against  funds  due  or 
 to  become  due  the  Contractor  by  reason  of  this  contract.  Payment  of  a  claim  in  this 
 manner  shall  not  relieve  the  contractor  or  contractor’s  surety  from  obliga�on  with 
 respect to any unpaid claims. 

 C.  Hours  of  Labor:  All  laborers  providing  contract  services  shall  be  paid  at  least  �me  and  a 
 half  for  all  over�me  worked  in  excess  of  40  hours  in  any  one  week,  except  for  individuals 
 under  these  contracts  who  are  excluded  under  ORS  653.010  to  653.261  or  under  29  USC 
 sec�on 201 to 209 from receiving over�me. 

 D.  Payment  for  Medical  Care:  Contractor  shall  promptly,  as  due,  make  payment  to  any 
 person,  co-partnership,  associa�on  or  corpora�on,  furnishing  medical,  surgical  and 
 hospital  care  or  other  needed  care  and  a�en�on,  incident  to  sickness  or  injury,  to  the 
 employees  for  such  Contractor,  of  all  sums  which  the  Contractor  agrees  to  pay  for  such 
 services  and  all  moneys  and  sums  which  the  contractor  collected  or  deducted  from  the 
 wages  of  employees  pursuant  to  any  law,  contract  or  agreement  for  the  purpose  of 
 providing or paying such service. 

 E.  Providing  Workers’  Compensa�on  Insurance:  All  employers  working  under  this  contract 
 are subject employers who will comply with ORS 656.017. 

 F.  Health  Care  Benefits  for  Employees:  The  Contractor  shall  provide  health  care  benefits  to 
 all  employees  who  are  performing  services  previously  performed  by  public  employees  if 
 the  condi�ons  specified  in  ORS  653.767  require  such  payment.  Benefits  must  equal  or 
 exceed  those  benefits  specified  in  ORS  279.315(3).  This  clause  does  not  apply  to 
 contracts for temporary, non-ongoing or nonrecurring contracts. 

 G.  Americans  with  Disabili�es  Act  Compliance:  Contractor  agrees  that  Contractor  will 
 comply  and  does  comply  with  all  relevant  provisions  of  the  Americans  with  Disabili�es 
 Act, to the extent required by the Act. 

 10 





 EXHIBIT A: 
 BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT 

 Between 
 POLK COUNTY and  OREGON FAMILY SUPPORT NETWORK 

 1.  DEFINITIONS: 

 Except  as  otherwise  defined  in  this  Business  Associate  Agreement  (BA  Agreement),  any 
 and  all  italicized  terms  herein  shall  have  the  same  defini�on  as  those  in  the  HIPAA 
 Privacy  Rule.  1  Henceforth,  Polk  County,  a  poli�cal  subdivision  of  the  State  of  Oregon, 
 shall  be  referred  to  as  “COUNTY”  and  Oregon  Family  Support  Network  shall  be  referred 
 to as “CONTRACTOR”. 

 2.  OBLIGATIONS AND ACTIVITIES OF CONTRACTOR: 

 A.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  not  use  or  disclose  Protected  Health  Informa�on  other  than 
 as permi�ed or required by this BA Agreement or as permi�ed or required by law. 

 B.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  use  appropriate  safeguards  to  prevent  use  or  disclosure  of 
 Protected Health Informa�on other than as provided for by this BA Agreement. 

 C.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  mi�gate,  to  the  extent  prac�cable,  any  harmful  effect  that  is 
 known  to  CONTRACTOR  of  a  use  or  disclosure  of  Protected  Health  Informa�on  by 
 CONTRACTOR in viola�on of the requirements of this BA Agreement. 

 D.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  report  to  the  COUNTY  any  use  or  disclosure  of  the  Protected 
 Health  Informa�on  not  provided  for  by  this  BA  Agreement  of  which  it  becomes 
 aware. 

 E.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  ensure  that  any  agent,  including  a  subcontractor,  to  whom  it 
 provides  Protected  Health  Informa�on  received  from,  or  created  or  received  by, 
 CONTRACTOR  on  behalf  of  the  COUNTY  agrees  to  the  same  restric�ons  and 
 condi�ons  that  apply  through  this  BA  Agreement  to  CONTRACTOR  with  respect  to 
 such informa�on. 

 1  The use and disclosure of protected health informa�on in performance of Business Associate func�ons is 
 governed by the Standards for Privacy of Individually Iden�fiable Health Informa�on (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164), 
 referred to as the Privacy Rule, which were issued by the United States Department of Health and Human Services 
 pursuant to Public Law 104-191, the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA). The use 
 and disclosure of protected health informa�on is also governed by laws of the State of Oregon and by other federal 
 laws. 

 12 



 F.  In  the  event  that  it  is  found  to  be  applicable,  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  provide  access, 
 at  the  request  of  the  COUNTY,  and  in  the  �me  and  manner  necessary  for  reasonable 
 compliance,  to  Protected  Health  Informa�on  in  a  Designated  Record  Set  to  the 
 COUNTY  or,  as  directed  by  the  COUNTY,  to  an  Individual  in  order  to  meet  the 
 requirements under 45 CFR § 164.524. 

 G.  In  the  event  that  it  is  found  to  be  applicable,  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  make  any 
 amendment(s)  to  Protected  Health  Informa�on  in  a  Designated  Record  Set  that  the 
 COUNTY  directs  or  agrees  to  pursuant  to  45  CFR  §  164.526  at  the  request  of 
 CONTRACTOR,  or  an  Individual,  and  in  the  �me  and  manner  necessary  for 
 reasonable compliance. 

 H.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  make  internal  prac�ces,  books,  and  records,  including 
 policies  and  procedures  and  Protected  Health  Informa�on,  rela�ng  to  the  use  and 
 disclosure  of  Protected  Health  Informa�on  received  from,  or  created  or  received  by 
 CONTRACTOR  on  behalf  of  the  COUNTY  available  to  the  COUNTY  or  to  the  Secretary 
 of  the  Department  of  Health  and  Human  Services  ,  in  a  �me  and  manner  agreed 
 between  the  COUNTY  and  CONTRACTOR  or  designated  by  the  Secretary,  for 
 purposes  of  the  Secretary  determining  the  COUNTY’S  compliance  with  the  Privacy 
 Rule. 

 I.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  document  such  disclosures  of  Protected  Health  Informa�on 
 and  informa�on  related  to  such  disclosures  as  would  be  required  for  the  COUNTY  to 
 respond  to  a  request  by  an  Individual  for  an  accoun�ng  of  disclosures  of  Protected 
 Health Informa�on in accordance with 45 CFR § 164.528. 

 J.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  provide  to  the  COUNTY  or  an  Individual,  in  the  �me  and 
 manner  necessary  for  reasonable  compliance,  informa�on  collected  in  accordance 
 with  sec�on  2.1  of  this  BA  Agreement,  to  permit  the  COUNTY  to  respond  to  a 
 request  by  an  Individual  for  an  accoun�ng  of  disclosures  of  Protected  Health 
 Informa�on in accordance with 45 CFR § 164.528. 

 3.  PERMITTED USES AND DISCLOSURES BY CONTRACTOR: Except as otherwise limited in 
 this BA Agreement, CONTRACTOR may use or disclose Protected Health Informa�on to 
 perform certain health plan func�ons for or on behalf of the COUNTY as specified in the 
 Polk County Agreement and in this BA Agreement provided that such use or disclosure 
 would not violate the Privacy Rule if done by the COUNTY or the minimum necessary 
 policies and procedures of the COUNTY. 

 13 



 4.  OBLIGATIONS OF THE COUNTY: 

 1.  The COUNTY shall no�fy CONTRACTOR of any limita�on(s) in the  No�ce of Privacy 
 Prac�ces  of the COUNTY in accordance with 45 CFR  § 164.520, to the extent that 
 such limita�on may affect CONTRACTOR’S use or disclosure of Protected Health 
 Informa�on. 

 2.  The COUNTY shall no�fy CONTRACTOR of any changes in, or revoca�on of, 
 permission by Individual to use or disclose Protected Health Informa�on, to the 
 extent that such changes may affect CONTRACTOR’S use or disclosure of Protected 
 Health Informa�on. 

 3.  The COUNTY shall no�fy CONTRACTOR of any restric�on to the use or disclosure of 
 Protected Health Informa�on that the COUNTY has agreed to in accordance with 45 
 CFR § 164.522, to the extent that such restric�on may affect CONTRACTOR’S use or 
 disclosure of Protected Health Informa�on. 

 5.  PERMISSIBLE REQUESTS BY THE COUNTY: The COUNTY shall not request CONTRACTOR to 
 use or disclose Protected Health Informa�on in any manner that would not be 
 permissible under the Privacy Rule if done by the COUNTY except if such use or 
 disclosure is permi�ed under the Agreement between the COUNTY and CONTRACTOR. 

 6.  TERM AND TERMINATION: 

 1.  Term  . This BA Agreement shall be effec�ve as of July  01, 2023, and shall terminate 
 when all of the Protected Health Informa�on provided by the COUNTY to 
 CONTRACTOR, or created or received by CONTRACTOR on behalf of the COUNTY, is 
 destroyed or returned to the COUNTY, or, if it is infeasible to return or destroy 
 Protected Health Informa�on, protec�ons are extended to such informa�on, in 
 accordance with the termina�on provisions in this Sec�on. 

 2.  Termina�on for Cause  . Upon the COUNTY’S knowledge  of a material breach by 
 CONTRACTOR, the COUNTY shall either: 

 a.  Provide an opportunity for CONTRACTOR to cure the breach without the 
 interven�on of the COUNTY within the �meline specified in Sec�on 16.B1 of the 
 Polk County Agreement; or 

 b.  Provide an opportunity for CONTRACTOR to terminate this BA Agreement and 
 the Polk County Agreement within the �meline specified in Sec�on 16 of the Polk 
 County Agreement. At the direc�on of its Board of Directors, the COUNTY may 

 14 



 terminate this BA Agreement and the Polk County Agreement as permi�ed in 
 Sec�on 16 of the Polk County Agreement if CONTRACTOR has not cured the 
 breach upon conclusion of the technical assistance and correc�ve ac�on 
 described in paragraph (i.) of this sec�on; or 

 c.  If neither termina�on nor cure is feasible, the COUNTY shall report the viola�on 
 to the Secretary. 

 3.  Effect of Termina�on  . 

 a.  Except as provided in paragraph (ii.) of this sec�on, upon termina�on of this BA 
 Agreement, for any reason, CONTRACTOR shall return or destroy all Protected 
 Health Informa�on received from the COUNTY, or created or received by 
 CONTRACTOR on behalf of the COUNTY. This provision shall apply to Protected 
 Health Informa�on that is in the possession of subcontractors or agents of 
 CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall retain no copies of the Protected Health 
 Informa�on. 

 b.  In the event that CONTRACTOR determines that returning or destroying the 
 Protected Health Informa�on is infeasible, CONTRACTOR shall provide to the 
 COUNTY wri�en no�fica�on of the condi�ons that make return or destruc�on 
 infeasible. Upon wri�en acknowledgement by the COUNTY that the return or 
 destruc�on of Protected Health Informa�on is infeasible, CONTRACTOR shall 
 extend the protec�ons of this BA Agreement to such Protected Health 
 Informa�on and limit further uses and disclosures of such Protected Health 
 Informa�on to those purposed that make the return or destruc�on infeasible, for 
 so long as CONTRACTOR maintains such Protected Health Informa�on. 

 7.  MISCELLANEOUS: 

 1.  Regulatory References  . References in this BA Agreement  to the Privacy Rule or any 
 sec�on of the Privacy Rule means the Privacy Rule or sec�on as in effect or as 
 amended. 

 2.  Amendment  . The COUNTY and CONTRACTOR agree to take  such ac�on as is 
 necessary to amend this BA Agreement from �me to �me as is necessary for the 
 COUNTY to comply with the requirement of the Privacy Rule and HIPAA. 

 3.  Survival  . The respec�ve rights and obliga�ons of  CONTRACTOR under Sec�on 6.C of 
 this BA Agreement shall survive the termina�on of this BA Agreement. 

 15 



 4.  Interpreta�on  . Any ambiguity in this BA Agreement shall be resolved to permit the 
 COUNTY to comply with the Privacy Rule. In the event of any inconsistency between 
 the provisions of this BA Agreement and the mandatory provisions of the Privacy 
 Rule, the Privacy Rule shall control. Where laws in the State of Oregon or other 
 federal law is more stringent than the Privacy Rule, the more stringent Oregon or 
 federal law shall control. 

 8.  SECURITY RULE BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT LANGUAGE: 

 1.  Background Requirement  : The COUNTY, in accordance  with § 164.306 and § 164.308 
 (b), may permit the CONTRACTOR to create, receive, maintain, or transmit Electronic 
 Protected Health Informa�on on the COUNTY’S behalf only if the COUNTY obtains 
 sa�sfactory assurances, in accordance with § 164.314(a) that the CONTRACTOR will 
 appropriately safeguard the informa�on. The COUNTY must document the 
 sa�sfactory assurances through a wri�en contract or other arrangement with the 
 CONTRACTOR. 

 2.  Part I. Security Assurances  : The CONTRACTOR will Implement  administra�ve, 
 physical, and technical safeguards that reasonably and appropriately protect the 
 confiden�ality, integrity, and availability of the electronic protected health 
 informa�on that it creates, receives, maintains, or transmits on behalf of the 
 COUNTY as required by the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 
 1996 and the requirements of Health Insurance Reform, the Security Standards 
 (45CFR Parts 160, 162 & 164); 

 a.  Ensure that any agent, including a SUBCONTRACTOR, to whom it provides such 
 informa�on, agrees to implement reasonable and appropriate safeguards to 
 protect it. 

 b.  Report to the COUNTY any security incident of which it becomes aware. 

 c.  Authorize termina�on of the contract by the COUNTY, if the COUNTY determines 
 that the business associate has violated a material term of the contract. 

 3.  Part II.  Other arrangements:  When the COUNTY and the  CONTRACTOR are both 
 governmental en��es, the COUNTY is in compliance with the requirements if: 

 a.  It enters into a memorandum of understanding with the CONTRACTOR that 
 contains terms that accomplish the objec�ves of Part I.; or 

 16 



 b.  Other  law  (including  regula�ons  adopted  by  the  COUNTY  or  the  CONTRACTOR) 
 contains  requirements  applicable  to  the  CONTRACTOR  that  accomplish  the 
 objec�ves of Part I. 

 4.  If the CONTRACTOR is required by law to perform a func�on or ac�vity on behalf of 
 the COUNTY or to provide a service described in the defini�on of CONTRACTOR as 
 specified in § 160.103 of the regula�on to the COUNTY, the COUNTY may permit the 
 CONTRACTOR to create, receive, maintain, or transmit Electronic Protected Health 
 Informa�on on its behalf to the extent necessary to comply with the legal mandate 
 without mee�ng the requirements of Part I., although the COUNTY will a�empt in 
 good faith to obtain sa�sfactory assurances as required by Part I. (A), and will 
 document the a�empt and the reasons that these assurances cannot be obtained, if 
 not obtained. 

 17 



 EXHIBIT B: 
 SCOPE OF WORK 

 A.  The  family  support  specialist  provides  support,  encouragement  and  assistance  to  mental 
 health  consumers  referred  to  Contractor  by  County  Behavioral  Health  and  Addic�ons 
 Services.  The  specialist  promotes  ac�vi�es  that  foster  recovery  and  empowerment  by 
 sharing  their  personal  experiences,  and  by  modeling  self-help  and  wellness  ac�vi�es. 
 The  family  support  specialist  is  a  consumer  advocate  who  facilitates  linkage  to  needed 
 services and ac�vi�es. 

 1.  The  family  support  specialist  shall  par�cipate  as  an  ac�ve  part  of  the  individual 
 treatment  team,  and  provide  exper�se  and  consulta�on  to  the  team  to  promote  a 
 culture  in  which  each  of  the  individual’s  point  of  view  and  preferences  are 
 recognized,  respected,  and  integrated  into  decisions  affec�ng  the  individuals.  The 
 family  support  specialist  will  work  under  joint  supervision  of  a  qualified  clinical 
 supervisor and Oregon Family Support Network staff; 

 2.  The  family  support  specialist  shall  provide  empathy,  insight,  and  support  to 
 individuals  using  a  strength-based  approach;  supports  individuals  voice  and  choice 
 by coaching individuals in effec�ve advocacy; 

 3.  Provides  modeling  and  support  to  individuals  so  they  can  lead  and  effec�vely 
 par�cipate in their treatment team mee�ngs; 

 4.  Support individual to build natural supports and community connec�ons; 

 5.  Assists  individuals  and  their  team  (treatment  provider(s),  family,  and  natural 
 supports) to develop a person centered plan, including wellness and recovery goals; 

 6.  Assist individuals in obtaining services; 

 7.  Provides  informa�on  regarding  referral  requirements  for  various  programs  and 
 provides assistance and support during any applica�on process; 

 8.  Provides  informa�on  and  suppor�ve  naviga�on  of  the  behavioral  health  system, 
 including  answering  phone  inquiries,  providing  informa�on,  coaching  on  how  to 
 access services and supports of all kinds; 

 9.  Providing assistance in connec�ng with peer and community resources; 

 10.  Ac�vely  par�cipates  in  assis�ng  individuals  to  strengthen  linkages  to  community  and 
 peer  delivered  services,  including  linkages  to  transporta�on,  housing,  educa�on,  and 
 employment; 

 18 



 11.  Promotes  those  ac�vi�es  that  foster  recovery  and  empowerment  by  sharing  their 
 personal experiences, modeling self-help and wellness ac�vi�es; 

 12.  County  must  receive  required  documenta�on  as  required  by  the  State  of  Oregon  or 
 this  agreement  for  each  Contractor  employee  prior  to  that  employee  providing 
 services  to  referred  individuals  under  this  agreement.  This  may  include  but  is  not 
 limited  to  name,  NPI  number,  required  state  cer�fica�ons  (Including  that  required  by 
 Oregon’s Office of Equity and Inclusion), date of birth, and social security number; 

 13.  Referrals will be assigned within 7 business days from �me of receipt; 

 14.  Documenta�on  must  be  typed  and  submi�ed  on  the  approved  template  monthly,  no 
 later than the 10  th  of the month following services. Late submission may not be paid; 

 15.  Invoices  must  be  submi�ed  monthly,  no  later  than  the  10  th  of  the  month  following 
 services. Late invoices will not be paid. 

 B.  Both par�es agree that this list of du�es may not be inclusive. 

 C.  Tele-health  services  may  be  provided  by  Contractor  as  permi�ed  by  the  Oregon  Health 
 Authority. 

 RATES 

 A.  County  will  pay  a  rate  of  $20.50  per  15  minute  unit  of  billable  service  per  client.  Monthly 
 clinical  consulta�on  mee�ngs  are  required  and  will  be  paid  at  $82.00  per  mee�ng  per 
 Family  Support  Specialist  a�ending.  Family  Support  Specialist  services  will  be  driven  by 
 County’s treatment plan and will be reviewed as necessary. 

 B.  Only  services  for  individuals  referred  to  Contractor  by  authorized  County  personnel  will 
 be payable under this agreement. 

 C.  All  agreed  upon  documenta�on  must  be  complete  and  accurate  for  each  individual  as 
 well as reviewed and approved by authorized County personnel. 

 D.  Each  service  must  be  a  billable  service  for  each  individual  served.  County  must  have 
 complete  and  accurate  records  received  and  entered  into  the  Electronic  Health  Record 
 (EHR) system before an invoice is paid to Contractor for case rate. 

 E.  Contractor may invoice admin overhead at 10% of billed charges. 

 F.  A�er  documenta�on  has  been  entered  for  each  individual  in  County’s  EHR  system  and 
 deemed  as  an  approved  billable  service,  County  will  honor  a  monthly  invoice  provided 
 by Contractor. 

 19 




